BA-3076

J. Adam Claggett House and Store

8815 Liberty Road

Randallstown

Private

c. 1882, 1892

The Claggett House and Store is located at 8815 Liberty Road, on the southwest side of
the road, and faces northeast toward the road. It is a 2 Ys-story, three-bay by two-bay
frame structure with a rubble stone foundation, German siding with corner boards, and a
gable roof with asphalt shingles and a southeast-northwest ridge. There is an interior
brick chimney on the northwest end of the ridge. There is a two-story, two-bay ell on the
southwest side of this section, and the German siding continues across both without
interruption. The ell has a gable roof with asphalt shingles and a northeast-southwest
ridge. There is a two-story, three-bay by one-bay addition on the southeast that has
German siding on the northeast elevation that does not align with the siding of the
northwest half. The southeast elevation appears to have T1-11 siding. The shed roof on
this section slopes down to the south. On the northeast elevation, the first story of the
southeast half, from east to west, has a two-over-two double hung sash, a door that
appears to be new but is in an original opening, and another typical two-over-two sash.
The northwest half has a door set at the east corner of the northwest half of the building,
and it appears to have been moved to this location. To the north of it is a window with 36
lights. The center bay of this section has no opening, and the northern bay has another 36
light sash. These sash extend down to the baseboard, are apparently fixed, and have a
pattern or texture in the glass. The entire northeast facade has a one-story porch with a

hip roof of asphalt shingles and seven wood posts. There is also a central gabled wall

dormer.



A-e7e

J. Adam Claggett purchased a two-acre lot here in 1882 for $800 and ten years later
added another two acres at a cost of $400. The higher cost of the first lot could reflect
improvements to the property, but not likely the frame house that is the west half of the
existing building. If an earlier structure was located here, it was either extensively
remodeled or demolished by Claggett and the existing house constructed. The addition of
the second parcel likely signifies the east addition to the property, which was likely
constructed as a store along the turnpike at the edge of Randallstown. The use of a center
entrance on a three-bay addition was common enough for houses in the early to mid-
nineteenth century, but by the late-nineteenth century was more typical for store additions
to dwellings. Claggett sold the property in 1900 to Frank and Mary George, and at the
same time purchased one of the George’s properties in Randallstown, where Claggett
apparently moved his operation. The J. Adam Claggett House and Store changed hands
frequently from the time Claggett sold it until after World War II. The cross gable of the
house is common for the period c. 1880-1910, but the use of cornice mouldings on
brackets over the windows gives the building a higher than average degree of finish.
Unfortunately, its owner does not consider the building to have any historic significance

and is clearly not maintaining it, which threatens its future.



Maryland Historical Trust Inventory No.

Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form

BA-3076

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic J. Adam Claggett House and Store
other

2. Location

street and number 8815 Liberty Road ____ notfor publication
city, town Randallstown X vicinity
county Baltimore County
3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)
name Canam, Inc.
street and number 8806 Stonehaven Rd telephone
city, town Randallstown state MD zip code 21133

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Baltimore County Courthouse

tax map and parcel: 77-1170

city, town Towson

liber 14267 folio 200

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report

Other

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function
district public ___agriculture ___ landscape
~ " — tion/culture
X building(s) X_ private _commerce/trade L rec?rga
~ structure " both __defensg . rellglon
site X domestic ___ social
- ) education transportation
___ object _ _ -
___funerary ___workin progress
___government ___unknown
___health care ___ vacant/notin use
___industry other:

Resource Count
Contributing Noncontributing

1 1 buildings
0 0 sites

0 0 structures
0 0 objects

1 1 Total

Number of Contributing Resources
previously listed in the Inventory

0




7. Description Inventory No.  BA-3076

Condition
__ excellent ___ deteriorated
__ good . ruins
X fair __ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

The Claggett House and Store is located at 8815 Liberty Road, on the southwest side of the road, and faces northeast toward the
road. Itis a2 's-story, three-bay by two-bay frame structure with a rubble stone foundation, German siding with corner boards,
and a gable roof with asphalt shingles and a southeast-northwest ridge. There is an interior brick chimney on the northwest end of
the ridge. There is a two-story, two-bay ell on the southwest side of this section, and the German siding continues across both
without interruption. The ell has a gable roof with asphalt shingles and a northeast-southwest ridge. There is a two-story, three-
bay by one-bay addition on the southeast that has German siding on the northeast elevation that does not align with the siding of
the northwest half. The southeast elevation appears to have T1-11 siding. The shed roof on this section slopes down to the south.

On the northeast elevation, the first story of the southeast half, from east to west, has a two-over-two double hung sash with a
beaded interior edge frame, a door that appears to be new but is in an original opening, and another typical two-over-two sash. The
northwest half has a door set at the east corner of the northwest half of the building, and it has head cut trim with a pedimented top
and a glazed door. This door appears to have been moved to this location. To the north of it is a window with 36 lights and the
same trim as the door. The center bay of this section has no opening, and the northern bay has another 36 light sash. These sash
extend down to the baseboard, are apparently fixed, and have a pattern or texture in the glass. The entire northeast facade has a
one-story porch with a hip roof of asphalt shingles, seven wood posts, and a concrete deck. On the second story, the southeast half
has a typical two-over-two sash, no opening, and another typical two-over-two sash. The northwest half has three two-over-two
sash with head cut trim and a small applied cornice moulding supported by small brackets. The southeast-half eave cornice has
brackets with a cavetto at the top, an ovolo and cavetto below, and an ovolo at the bottom. Between the brackets is a board frieze
with jig-sawn cuts in it. The northwest half has a cornice with brackets that has a very deep ogee and a small ogee at the bottom.
There is also a central gabled wall dormer that has paired one-over-one sash with pedimented trim.

The southeast elevation has a typical two-over-two sash on both the first and second stories. The gable end of the northwest half
has two small two-over-two sash with pedimented trim, and the same bracKets as on the northeast side of this section. On the
northwest elevation, the first story has no opening in the north bay and a two-over-two sash with no trim in the west bay. The first
story of the ell has two two-over-two sash with cornice mouldings and brackets identical to the second story of the northeast
elevation. The second story of the northwest half has no opening in the north bay and a two-over-two sash in the west bay that has
a comice like those on the northeast. The ell has two two-over-two sash with pedimented trim. The gable end of the northwest
half matches that on the southeast side. There is a modern one-story shed roof addition on the southwest side of the ell. It has a
parged foundation and T1-11 siding.



8. Significance Inventory No.  BA-3076

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
—_ 1600-1699 ___ agriculture __ economics ___ health/medicine ___ performing arts
___1700-1799 __ archeology ___ education ___industry ___ philospohy
X 1800-1899 X architecture ___ engineering ___invention ___ politics/government
__1800-1999 ___ art __ entertainment/ ___landscape architecture __ religion
— 2000- ___ commerce recreation __law ___ science
___ communications __ ethnic heritage __literature ___ social history
___ community planning __ exploration/ ___ maritime industry __ transportation
___ conserfvation settlement — military ___ other:
Specific dates na Architect/Builder n/a

Construction dates c. 1882.¢c.1892

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of
the history of the resource and its context. (For compliance reports, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.)

J. Adam Claggett purchased a two-acre lot here in 1882 for $800 and ten vears later added another two acres at a cost of $400.
The higher cost of the first lot could reflect improvements to the property. but not likely the frame house that is the west half of
the existing building. If an earlier structure was located here. it was either extensively remodeled or demolished by Claggett and
the existing house constructed. There are two buildings indicated in the general vicinity of this one on the 1877 Hopkins Atlas,
but there is no way to be certain if one of those buildings is located on this parcel. The addition of the second parcel likely
signifies the east addition to the property, which was likely constructed as a store along the turnpike at the edge of Randallstown.
The use of a center entrance on a three-bay addition was common enough for houses in the early to mid-nineteenth century, but
by the late-nineteenth century was more typical for store additions to dwellings. A similar pattern can be seen at the Wadlow
Store and Dwelling (CARR-1382) on the Old Liberty Road in Carroll County. The use of a shed roof was also typical for store
additions. Claggett’s building is clearly indicated on the 1898 Bromley Atlas. Claggett sold the property in 1900 to Frank and
Mary George, and at the same time purchased one of the George’s properties in Randallstown (9101-05 Liberty Road, BA-3077),
where Claggett apparently moved his operation. The 1898 map shows the George house set well back off of Liberty Road, and
they had another property on Liberty Road. but neither of these was sold. Claggett still retained property near his old store; the
1915 Bromley Atlas shows him there, with 40 acres. The J. Adam Claggett House and Store changed hands frequently from the
time Claggett sold it until after World War II. This likely reflects its use as a commercial property, since small stores would
come and go, either because they might find a better location or because they went under. It is not known whether the owners
operated the store. either. or whether they leased the house and store to someone. Nothing more could be found about the owners
or store at this time, but the building represents a tvpe that was once fairly common but is now very rare along Liberty Road, or
any of the old turnpikes in Baltimore County today. The cross gable of the house is common for the period c. 1880-1910, but the
use of cornice mouldings on brackets over the windows gives the building a higher than average degree of finish. Unfortunately,
its owner does not consider the building to have anv historic significance and is clearly not maintaining it. which threatens its
future. (1)

Notes:

(1) Baltimore County Land Records. WMG 133-23; LMB 195-14; NB 247-343. G. M. Hopkins. Atlas of Baltimore County,
Maryland (Philadelphia, 1877). G. W. Bromley, Atlas of Baltimore County, Maryland (Philadelphia, 1898, 1915). See also, BA-
3077, Samuel and Virginia Schmidt House, 9103 Liberty Road.



9. Major Bibliographical References

Inventory No. BA-3076

See continuation sheet.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 19 728 sq ft

Acreage of historical setting 19,728 sq ft

Quadrangle name

Ellicott Citv

Quadrangle scale 1:24000

Verbal boundary description and justification
The boundaries include the entire parcel.

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle Kenneth M. Short

organization

date 01/29/2003

street and number 610 Regester Ave.

telephone  410-377-4953

city or town Baltimore

state MD Zip code 21212-1915

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland
Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974

supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only and

not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to:

Maryland Historical Trust

DHCD/DHCP

100 Community Place
Crownsville MD 21032
410-514-7600
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Continuation Sheet
Number 9 Page 1

Inventory No.

BA-3076

See endnotes
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